
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JUNE 16, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

  

                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /   

  
 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council meeting minutes / June 2, 2014 

                                                     Council Work Session minutes / June 9, 2014 
                                                     
PRESENTATION:  Brian & Season Russo / Eye Heart World / Human Trafficking Awareness 

 

           

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway       

            Review minutes / June 9
th

  

            1.)   Ordinances:  

                   a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Survey, Engineering, Design and Letting / 

                           City-Wide Infrastructure Projects: North Main Street Paved Concrete  

                           Ditch Repairs / Ordinance 2014-26 

                   b.)    Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood Drive / 1.25 Miles (Lake Forest Phase IV) 

                           ACOA61155-ATRIP (001) ATRIP 02-05-35 Ordinance 2014-25 

                   c.)    Appropriation of Funds: Debt Forgiveness: Recreation Capital Purchases Loan from    

                            Lodging Tax Fund / Ordinance 2014-27 

 

              2.)  Resolutions: 

                    a.)   Bid Award: 2014-L-PD Radio Equipment / GPS Tracking Systems & Software /  

                           GPS Tracking System & Software / Resolution 2014-31 

                    b.)   Bid Award:  2014-M-Street Signs / Vulcan Signs / Resolution 2014-32 

                    c.)   2014 “Back to School” Sales Tax Holiday / Resolution 2014-33 

                    d.)   Retiree Cost of Living One-Time Lump Sum Payment / Resolution 2014-34 

 

               3.)  Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / May 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / April 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collection / April 2014 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis 

   Review minutes / June 2
nd

  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell      

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

   Review minutes / June 11
th

  

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

   Review minutes / May 19
th

  

   Review Beautification minutes / May 7
th

  

   Review Museum minutes / April 14
th

  

   Review Environmental Advisory Committee minutes / April 28
th

  

 

1



 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     JUNE 16, 2014                                   PAGE   2 

 

 

 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones  

         Review minutes / May 2
nd

     

        Review staff report for the June 5
th

 meeting 

        

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway  

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis    

   D.  Library Board - Lake  
D. Planning Commission – Scott  

E. Recreation Board – LeJeune 

Review minutes / May 14
th

  

Review Proposal for New Facilities 

 

   G. Utility Board - Fry  

         

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report             

     B.  City Attorney’s Report        

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

           a.)  Special Events Permit / Daphne Arts Center / Old Daphne Farm and Art Fair / June 28, 2014 

           b.)  Parade Permit / American Foundation for Suicide Prevention / October 19, 2014 

 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   
 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

   

        RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)   Support of the D’Olive Bay Forever Wild Nomination. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-30  

 

b.)   Bid Award: PD Radio Equipment: GPS Tracking System & 

        Software / GPS Tracking System & Software. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-31 

 

c.)    Bid Award: Street Signs / Vulcan Signs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-32 

 

d.)   2014 “Back to School” Sales Tax Holiday. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-33 

 

e.)    Retiree Cost of Living one-Time Lump Sum Payment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-34 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2



 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     JUNE 16, 2014                                   PAGE   3 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:  

        

        2
ND

 READ 
a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Project ACOA61155 (001) ATRIP 02-05-35 /  

        Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood Drive / 1.25 Miles  

        (Lake Forest Phase IV). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-25 

 

       

         1
ST

 READ 
a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Engineering, Design and Letting /  

        North Main Street Paved Concrete Ditch Repairs / 

        City-Wide Infrastructure Projects. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-26 

 

b.)   Appropriation of Funds: Debt Forgiveness: Recreation Capital  

        Purchases Loan from Lodging Tax Fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-27 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 1



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Stuart Davidson with the Eastern Shore Baptist Church gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City 

Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director; David McKelroy, Recreation 

Director; Mike Hinson, Finance Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Margaret Thigpen, 

Civic Center Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee and Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; 

Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Heiko Einfeld, Interim Director for Eastern Shore 

Chamber of Commerce; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Council members from 

Mt. Vernon: Ms. Johnnie Johnson, Ms. Jeanette McGaskell, Ms. Gwendolyn Pugh and James 

May. 

  

Absent: Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; James White, Fire Chief; 

Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge;. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

May 19, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the May 19, 2014 council meeting minutes, and stand approved as 

written. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  CDBG / Dauphine Acres / Whispering Pines Area 

 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director gave a presentation saying that when they asked council 

for permission to explore this they did not know the timeline that ADECA had placed for it, and 

they have given the dates that it is due and it is sooner than expected.  The grant writers and 

HMR have been out in the field collecting data, and at this point in time his, HMR and the grant 

writers conclusion is that it is not the right time to apply with the deadline being June 9
th

 they do 

not feel like they can prepare an application that would qualify in ADECA’s eyes in that short 

period of time.  This is a yearly process and the city can apply for it next year. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway said although the city would not qualify for the grant she would like 

for Mr. Johnson to move forward with preliminary plans, because if they can’t use the grant they 

can at least look at phases of trying to get sewer in that area, and that should be their top priority 

for the city until everybody in the city has sewer. 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 2



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

Councilman Scott said one of the advantages of the community  Development Block grants is 

that the recipients would not have to pay a tap fee or capacity fee which is almost $3,000, and he 

thinks it includes connection to the house.  He agrees with Mrs. Conaway that the city needs to 

go ahead and do some preparation and get ready for it, and he thinks it will be to the advantage 

of the citizens in that area to go in during the 2015 cycle. 

 

Council President Scott opened the Public Hearing at 6:48 p.m. 

 

Dr. Pam Henson – 810 Juniper Court – was pleased with Councilwoman Conaway’s handling 

of the sewer problems.  She asked Council to stay on the forefront of this problem. 

 

Mr. Thomas Smith – 7885 Whispering Pines Road – spoke regarding septic tank problems and 

asked Council to move forward with sewering and not to put it on the back burner. 

 

Mr. O.J. Smith – 7991 Whispering Pines Road – said he would like sewer service, and asked 

how long would they have to wait for the service. 

 

Council President Fry closed the Public Hearing at 6:55 p.m. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be June 9
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee just met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The May 14
th

 minutes are in the packet, and the next meeting is June 11
th

 at 4:30 p.m.   

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The next meeting will be June 11
th

 at 5:30 or after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be June 16
th

 at 5:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference room.  Ordinance 

2014-25 is on the agenda for a first read. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The board will meet Thursday with one item on the agenda a request for a setback variance. 

 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 3



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

        B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The minutes for the May 28
th

 meeting are in the packet, and the next meeting will be June 25
th

 at 

5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The next meeting will be June 23
rd

 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be June 12
th

 at 4:00 p.m. at the Library. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The April 24
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The Site Review meeting will be June 18
th

 at 8:30 a.m. 

and the regular Planning Commission meeting will be June 26
th

 at 5:00 p.m.  He applauded Mrs. 

Jones for taking the lead with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The May minutes will be in the next packet. The next meeting will be June 11
th

 at 6:30 p.m. at 

the Recreation Center. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The April 30
th

 minutes are in the packet.  Council President Fry reported that Mr. Lon Johnston 

has resigned from the Utility Board.  He read his resignation letter.  (Letter is spread out upon 

these minutes) 

 

Daphne City Council Members: 

 

Subject:  Resignation from Daphne Utility Board 

 

Please be advised that I will resign my position on the Daphne Utility Board effective with my 

term expiration date of June 12, 2014. 

 

Age and health consideration of both me and my wife indicate it is timely to take my leave! 

 

My nearly a decade on the Utility Board has been quite a journey.  Having been even a small 

part of the transition from barely able to meet payroll to being recognized as a top ten small 

business in America was pleasurable and satisfying. 

 

Despite the progress, a word of caution:  A vast amount of funds will be required to meet the 

needs of an aging infrastructure, governmental regulations and mandates, expansion and 

emergencies.  Please keep that in mind when appointing my replacement. 

 

 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 4



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

I would be remiss without a final plea to complete sewers to the balance of Daphne.  I appreciate 

the cost but would remind you that the 3% Pilot Fee charged to Daphne Utility customers goes 

into the City general fund for the express purpose of providing sewer infrastructure. 

 

Best wishes 

Lon D. Johnston 

 

Mr. Bob Segalla, Chairman of the Daphne Utility Board, said that he served 10 years with Mr. 

Johnston, and thanked Mr. Johnston for his contribution.  He had this plea: The days of cheap 

clean water is in the past.  The infrastructure is aging and needs to be replaced.  He asked council 

to pick someone who can make the tough decisions, and they need to be a strong person with a 

good business mind. 

 

Council President Fry said the next meeting will be June 25
th

, and Mr. Johnston said he will stay 

on the board for that meeting.  He said council will be taking resume’s for the vacated position 

and make a decision by the first meeting in July. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a deadline of June 30, 2014 to receive resume’s for 

the vacated position on the Utility Board.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                              MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

Councilman Rudicell asked that the vacancy be advertised in the paper. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Haygood reported that Rick Whitehead will be giving a presentation on Spam Service at the 

work session which will start June 23
rd

.   He mentioned the repairs to Gator Alley saying they have 

a target date of August 15
th
 for a reopening date, and they will attempt a limited opening on June 

20
th 

to enable some viewing of waterways and alligators.  He also reported that the Lamar case was 

settled last week and read some of the conditions:   

1. Lamar will be permitted to erect one double sided digital billboard in  the City of Daphne 

not to exceed 14 x 28 feet and 36 feet high 

2. It would have to be erected on private property 

3. In exchange for that they will be taking down existing sign inventory of six signs in the 

City of Daphne 

4. They will forego the five applications that they had submitted to the city and were subject 

of the litigation 

5. They agreed not to advertise any adult or mature content nor any tobacco or alcoholic 

products on the digital billboard 

6. They will make messaging available to law enforcement such as amber alerts and other 

emergencies and evacuations 

7. The City of Daphne will be granted 1/12 of their time slots to advertise city functions and 

other messaging for what council deems for the public good 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 5



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

8. They agreed not to legally contest the city’s sign ordinance as it is currently codified or 

subsequently amended which means the city will not be back in this position again 10, 15 

or 20 years from now 

9. They agreed not to file any sign permits for billboards in the city’s legally allowed police 

jurisdiction which give the city protection on Highway 181, and some of the growth areas 

in the City of Daphne 

10. They agreed that the sign will be monument style with architectural approval by the city.  It 

won’t be a basic pylon structure with a  digital face on it.  It will have some architectural 

uniqueness 

11. There will be a minimum of eight seconds hold time with no flashing motion 

12. They agreed to control brightness 

13. They will provide the city with a device that will enable measuring the brightness by the 

Code Enforcement Officer 

14. They agreed to make a contribution to the city’s tree and flower fund which started with the 

demise of the two oak trees 

15. They agreed to sponsor the intersection under the city’s new project “Bloom” for a period 

of five years.  So private funds will be funding flower beds 

 

Mayor Haygood wanted to make sure the public and council was aware of the details of that 

settlement. 

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross introduced council members from Mt. Vernon: Ms. Johnnie Johnson, Ms. Jeanette 

McGaskell, Ms. Gwendolyn Pugh and James May. He discussed a lease agreement with Verizon 

that the Mayor negotiated saying Verizon wants to lease a parcel of property off Well Road by 

the Public Works facility.  A 30 x 35 foot parcel for an initial five year term which would be 

$9,600 per year.  At the end of the five years if they want to continue the lease the amount will 

go up in incremental costs.  They will be subject to the ordinances with regards to height.  It is a 

fairly basic lease agreement, and has been to the Buildings and Property Committee with a 

favorable recommendation. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to authorize the Mayor to sign a Land Lease 

Agreement between the City of Daphne and Verizon Wireless Personal 

Communications LP D/B/A Verizon Wireless / (Tiawasee Creek Site/PC Law No. 

1127-1308).  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                            MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported the following:  Thursday, June 5 will be Art 

in the Park from 10:00 – 1:00 at Lott Park.  Wednesday, June 11, 18 & 25 will be Wet-N-Wild 

from 10:00 – 1:00 at Lott Park.  Thursday, June 12
th

 starts Adult Kickball.  Friday, June 13-18 

Daphne Dixie Youth Baseball Peanut All-Star ages 7 & 8 years old at Lott Park. Thursday, June 

19-24 Daphne Dixie Youth Baseball Minor All Star ages 9 & 10 at Lott Park.  Friday June 20-22 

USFA Softball with 51 teams.  Friday, June 27-28 Daphne High School Jubilee Shootout 7 on 7  

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 6



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

Football at Trione. Friday June 27-July 1 Daphne Dixie Boys Baseball Districts 13 & 14 at 

Trione.  Friday July 4
th

 Fireworks at Trione – Free hot dogs, Snow cones, lemonade and water.  

Slides will be prior to fireworks. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – gave statistics for Bayfront and Civic Center 

rentals. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – gave an update on FEMA and NRCS funding for 

damage from the rain event. 

 
Adrienne Jones – Planning Director - reported that she made a presentation regarding the 

Comprehensive Plan at the Buildings and Property meeting and received some good information. She will 

give the presentation at the Finance, Library, Public Safety and Recreation meetings. 

 

     D.  City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 

No report. 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mr. Willie Williams – 1513 Pollard Road – spoke regarding discrimination practices going on at Daphne 

Utilities and asked council to investigate.  He asked council to choose someone qualified to replace Mr. 

Johnston on the Utility Board. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Authorize Application for the 2014 Recreational Trails Grant /  

       Village Point Park Preserve Boardwalk . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 

2014-29  
 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to suspend the rules to consider Resolution 2014-

29.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway   Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

                                                 MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 7



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Resolution 2014-29. Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                                 MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolution 2014-29.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

                                             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 ORDINANCES: 

 

       2
ND

 READ   

a.)    Establishing a Policy for Events Held Within the City of  

         Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-23 
 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-23.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                                MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Ordinances 2014-23.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 8



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 
b.)     Appropriation of Funds:  Project:  ACOA61155-ATRIP 02-05-35 /  

         Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood Drive – 1.25 Miles 

         (Lake Forest Phase IV). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-25 

 

After the bid opening for the project the costs were higher than projected. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to amend Ordinance 2014-25 for an additional to the 

ATRIP cost for Phase IV to the figures below:   

 

Estimated Activities Total Cost 
80% 

Reimbursement 
20% Cost to the 

City 

Construction $1,849,018.51 $1,479,214.81 $369,803.70 

Construction Engineering & 
Inspection & Material Testing $   277,352.78 $221,882.22 $  55,470.56 

Totals: $2,126,371.29 $1,701,097.03 $425,274.26 

 

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

                                               MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2014-25 WAS MADE 1
ST

 READ 
 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Haygood reported the Daphne High School graduation went well, and congratulated the class of 

2014.  He mentioned Ms. Peyton Grantham’s accomplishments as a starting third baseman for the 

University of Alabama Softball team, and Jaycob Curlee who is a contestant on America’s Got Talent and 

did well.  He reported the elections are tomorrow, and he thanked the poll workers. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway  thanked all the citizens for coming out tonight. 

 

Councilman Lake spoke regarding the demise of the two oak trees saying he filed a complaint 

with ALDOT, and they will do an investigation.  He was disappointed with the Mayor that the 

trees were sent to the dump, because he wanted them to have souvenirs made from them.  He 

voiced his disappointment on how the process was handled. 

 

Councilman Scott thanked the councilmembers from Mt. Vernon for visiting tonight.  He 

thanked the folks from the Whispering Pines area for coming out and letting council know that 

they want sewer for those areas. 

 

 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 9



JUNE 2, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e9
 

 

Councilman Davis welcomed their colleagues from Mt. Vernon, and said if they could help 

them to let them know.  He said it distresses him that part of the city does not have sewer.  He 

looks forward to helping them get sewered. He thanked his fellow council members. 

 

Council President Fry also thanked the folks for coming out for the sewer issues.  It is important 

to the council.  He thanked the Mt. Vernon Councilmembers for coming tonight.  He said the 

flags for Memorial Day were awesome  out on Highway 98 and Highway 181.  He attended the  

 

 

Veterans Cemetery for a ceremony, and it was a moving tribute. He reminded folks to vote 

tomorrow. 
 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 7:55 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk      Council President 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 10



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 11



JUNE 9, 2014 
CITY COUNCILWORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Kevin Boucher, City 

Attorney; Mike Hinson, Finance Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs 

Manager; David Tarwater, Baldwin County School Board; Denise D’Oliviera, S.E.E.D.S.; 

Deborah Geiger, S.E.E.D.S. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. S.E.E.D.S. PRESENTATION / DENISE D’OLIVIERA  

Mrs. D’Oliviera thanked council for their support of S.E.E.D.S. She, David Tarwater and 

Deborah Geiger updated council on the programs at the schools and how monies are spent.  

Mrs. D’Oliviera announced that she was stepping down as Executive Director and will be 

working with the county on implementing programs throughout Baldwin County.  She handed 

out thank you letters from the Daphne schools. (Letters are spread out upon these minutes) 

 

2. SUPPORT FOREVER WILD NOMINATION / ASHLEY CAMPBELL 

Mrs. Campbell explained that parcels of land have been nominated to become part of the Forever 

Wild Program, and the resolution is to support that nomination.  The parcels are adjacent to Gator 

Alley, and the resolution states that the city will seek funding to implement boardwalks through 

the parcels and once installed will provide maintenance and security of the improvements. 

 

Consensus of council was to put the resolution on the agenda for Monday. 

 

3. SPAM FILTER / RICK WHITEHEAD / MAYOR HAYGOOD 

Mr. Whitehead explained to council the solution to the spam e-mails they have been getting 

which is a spam filter.  He presented a power point on how to log in and how the filter works.  

This will include their cell phones, and will cost about 50 cents per user per month or $600 per 

year. 

 

4. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY  

Councilman Rudicell suggested to council to think about restructuring the committee system.  

He suggested e-mailing information to all the council instead of just the ones on the committee 

so that they would all have the information at the same time.  Council discussed moving some 

of the committees to a different time of the month. They discussed moving Finance to the 3
rd

 

Monday of the month and Public Works to the 2
nd

 Monday of the month, 

 

Consensus of council was to consider this at later date. 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 12



JUNE 9, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes          Randy Fry 

City Clerk                                                            Council President Pro tem                                           

                                               

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 13



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 14



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 15



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 16



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 17



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 18



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 19



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 20



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   MAY 12, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at  4:02 p.m.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Ron 
Scott, Councilman Joseph Davis, Mayor Dane Haygood, Finance Director Mike Hinson, Senior Accountant 
Suzânne Henson, Accounting Technician Sue Moody,  and Revenue Officer Angie Phillips. 
Councilman John Lake arrived at 4:22p.m. 
Also in attendance were Councilman Pat Rudicell, Robin LeJeune, Councilman Randy Fry, Human Resource 
Director Vickie Hinman, and Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Police Captain Scott Taylor, Community 
Development Director Adrienne Jones, Recreation Director David McKelroy, Engineer Randy Davis – Volkert 
Engineering, and Engineer Tim Lawley -  Hutchinson, Moore, and Rauch, LLC. 
 
I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A. Retirement Systems of Alabama – One time lump sum payment  
 
Councilman Pat Rudicell spoke in favor of approving the Retirement Systems of Alabama option of allowing a 
one-time lump sum payment of $2/month for each year of service credited to the retiree’s account or $300, 
whichever is greater for retired members or their beneficiaries.  Mr. Rudicell stated that a Resolution would need 
to be approved and that the one-time contribution would be made in Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
Mr. Larry Cook, citizen of Daphne commented that last Saturday there had been a report on the RSA one-time 
lump sum payment on television on Channel 42 if anyone wanted to review that program information. 
 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 
Recreation Program Coordinator   Reviewing applications 
Temporary PT HR Technician   Reviewing applications 
PT Public Service Worker    Reviewing applications 
Library Computer Services Technician  Pending Posting  
PT Fitness Associate     Pre-employment process 
Public Works Intern     DOH:  5/15/2014 
Mechanical Admin. Tech.    DOH:  6/05/2014 
Revenue Officer     Posting:  6/4/2014 – 6/18/2014 
The merit requests have been submitted to the Mayor as of 4-30-14 and he is reviewing those. 
Safety Committee meeting was held on May 29, 2014.  Report of City employee injuries and property 
damages for last month. We have ordered cooling towels and hats for employees in Public Works and 
Recreation for the summer.  The next Safety Committee meeting will be on 6-25-14 at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Mrs. Hinman noted the Part Time Fitness Associate position was hired as of this Thursday.  Mrs. Conaway 
asked Mrs. Hinman about the two positions:  Human Resources Part-Time Technician and Recreation Program 
Coordinator which have been open for awhile, since the beginning of the Fiscal Year.  Mrs. Hinman discussed 
she was now requesting a Temporary Part-time for FY2014 because she would like to request a Full time 
employee in the FY2015 Budget.  Mr. Davis asked if the HR position was a new position or was it filling an old 
vacant position.  Mrs. Hinman answered this was a new position Council approved in the FY2014 Budget.  Mrs. 
Hinman further discussed that because the part time person would be hired so late in the Fiscal Year, only three 
months remaining, and that part time employees generally do not want to go full time she would prefer to hire a 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 21



Finance Minutes  2  

temporary employee for the couple months the employee would work this fiscal year and request a full time 
employee next fiscal year.  Mayor Haygood discussed the delay in hiring the Recreation Program Coordinator 
and the need to review the applications to evaluate the various combined job duties that position needs to 
perform.  Mayor Haygood discussed the need to confirm there is the right set of qualifications in the applicant 
pool.  Mayor Haygood continued discussing the Recreation Program Coordinator position and noted that Mr. 
McKelroy was currently reviewing those applications.  Mr. Mckelroy noted he was reviewing the applications. 
 
Mrs. Hinman noted the PW Intern was hired on 05-15-14 and that this intern is attending University of South 
Alabama to obtain a Civil Engineer Degree. Mr. Davis asked how long the intern will be working at the City.  
Mrs. Hinman answered generally the interns work for a semester but sometimes it is longer.  Mrs. Hinman 
stated the Revenue Officer position will be open as of this coming Friday and that position advertisement is 
posted.  Mrs. Hinman noted the Events Assistance position for Civic Center is now open and will be posted. 
 
Discussion continued with Mrs. Angie Phillips, Revenue Officer saying she was offered another position and she 
had enjoyed working with everyone at the City.  Mrs. Phillips noted that she had offered to the Mayor and the 
Finance Director to work as she was available until the position was filled. 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  April, 2014 

 
    Mr. Hinson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,930,806 
 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $ 206,247 
 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service – 4.9 months 

compared to the previous year -  5.1 months 
Mr. Hinson noted the graph shows activity is on track with the previous year. 
           .   
The Treasurer’s Report as of May 31, 2014 Total Unrestricted Funds - $10,930,806              
and Total City Funds - $17,114,031 was presented to be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes:  April, 2014 
 

Mr. Hinson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs: $1,110,085.05 was collected for April 2014 and 
reviewed two important numbers to pay attention to: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $ 15,593.24    +  .2% 
 Percent change from last year’s collections   + 4.7%  

.   
3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  March, 2014 

 
Mr. Hinson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for April 2014 were 
$86,245.34 which is up 38,810 from April’s 2013’s collections of $47,434.55.                  .  

 YTD Variance over Budget:    $37,018.76; +5.5% 
 Percentage change from last year’s collections:  8.8% 

 
Mr. Davis asked is this the first month of collections after the increase in Lodging Tax rate (rate increased from 
4% to 6%)  Mr. Hinson answered yes.  Mr. Scott noted there was also an increase in Lodging Tax collections 
due to increase in activity.  Mr. Scott noted without the rate increase the increase from last April 2013 would 
have been approximately $8,000 but with the rate change the increase was $38,810. 
 

5. Report: New Business Licenses – April, 2014    
      
Mrs. Phillips reviewed the Business Licenses Report.  Mrs. Phillips noted that total business license issued YTD 
were down 12 from last year.  Mrs. Phillips noted that 167 licenses issued for April, up 15 from May 2013 (152 
licenses issued).  Mrs. Phillips continued that of the 167 Business License issued, 132 were renewals, and 25  

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 22



Finance Minutes  3  

new businesses with 8 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 10 were prior year licenses.  Mrs. 
Phillips noted a map would be included in the Council packet showing each of the 8 new businesses locations. 
Mrs. Phillips noted that last year’s collections for Business license was $1.6 million and this year’s current 
collections is at $1.7 million so there is already an increase of $100,000     
 
Mrs. Phillips reviewed that she is continuing the process of going through the Delinquency report. Mr. Davis 
asked about procedures on collecting delinquencies.  Mrs. Phillips stated that the state of Alabama has 
procedures in effect for collection of delinquencies.  Mrs. Phillips stated that a lot of the delinquencies have been 
cleared up.  Mrs. Phillips noted that out of the 254 page report that 124 pages have been reconciled/resolved 
and she was continuing to work on the remaining delinquencies.   
 

6.  Bills Paid Reports –  May, 2014 
The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. Discussion continued on various charges. 
 
Councilman Randy Fry asked why the City attorney’s bill was not listed in the report.  Mayor Haygood 
answered that a lot of times we receive two months bills together so I guess we did not have any for 
this time period.  Mr. Scott asked about status on Hosea Weaver project. 
 

A. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

1.  PD Budget Deficits: Jail meals, supplies, and Sprinkler System Repair - $34,500 
 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the Police Department’s request to appropriate monies to cover a budget deficit for 
inmate meals, supplies and sprinkler system repair.  Mr. Scott asked about using Court Correction monies and 
the balance in this fund.  Mr. Hinson answered the balance, which all belongs to Court,  is currently $192,878.  
Discussion continued on different sources to fund the deficit.  Captain Taylor discussed the increase in inmates 
being housed, inmates staying longer, and the increase cost in supplies.  Captain Taylor also discussed the Jail 
is researching a different setup in food preparation and kitchen equipment that would be needed.  Mrs. Henson 
noted that a new bid is pending for inmate meals purchasing so once the decision is made on what type of food 
service would be best the bid needs to be adapted.  Mayor Haygood stated he would like to review the 
information and get with Police and Finance to find a solution.  Captain Taylor noted the fire sprinkler system 
also needs to be addressed.  Mrs. Conaway asked what is the condition of the sprinkler system.  Mr. Scott 
noted the backup says the sprinkler system is currently working properly so could the Mayor also work with 
Police to find a solution for this repair.  Mr. Davis noted that Buildings and Property Committee would assist with 
finding a solution. 

 
2. North Main Street Concrete Ditch Repair: City Wide Infrastructure Projects 

resulting from April 29-30, 2014 Rains - $14,250 (Survey, Design, & Letting Cost)  
(Total Project cost-$184,875 / City’s share - $36,975 

 
Mrs. Henson noted that Mr. Randy Davis, Volkert Engineering was present to answer any technical questions.  
Mr. Davis reviewed the project and noted the ditch is in dire need of repair and discussed the need to move 
forward with the project.  Mrs. Henson stated the appropriation request is for the Survey, Design & Letting Cost - 
$14,250 (Total project cost is estimated at $184,875). 
 
Motion by Mr.  Scott  to appropriate  $14,250 from Capital Reserve Fund  for the 
Survey,  Design& Letting of the City Wide Infrastructure project: North Main Street 
Concrete Ditch Repair.  Seconded by Mr.  Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

3. ATRIP: Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood (LF Phase IV) – City’s Share - $425,275  
  
Mrs. Henson noted that Mr. Lawley, HMR Engineering was present to answer any technical questions 
concerning the project and Mr. Johnson had provided backup information in the packet.  Mr. Scott noted that Mr. 
Johnson had discussed this project at the last Council meeting and presented information.  Mr. Scott noted that 
the final amount did come in a little higher than expected.    
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 23



Finance Minutes  4  

Motion by Mr. Scott  to appropriate  $425,275 be transferred from General Fund to 
Capital Reserve Fund  for the ATRIP: Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood (LF IV).  
Seconded by Mr.  Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
B. Bids: (Resolution) 

1.  2014-L- PD RADIO EQUIPMENT: GPS TRACKING SYSTEM & SOFTWARE  
 
Mrs. Henson review the Radio Equipment bid and the recommendation letter that Chief Carpenter submitted 
requesting award to the sole bidder – Hurricane Electronics.  Mrs. Henson noted that this is portion of the Radio 
System project that was required to be bid out.  Mrs. Henson noted that the majority of the equipment was 
available through state bid but the equipment included in this bid was not.  Mrs. Henson noted that monies were 
appropriated for the complete radio project (Ordinance 2014-04 - $247,182 – adopted in February, 2014).    

 

Motion by Mr.  Scott  to recommend to Council to award the 2014-L-PD Radio Equipment:  
GPS Tracking System & Software in the amount of $56,599.91 to Hurricane Electronics.  

Seconded by Mr.  Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

2. 2014-M-STREET SIGNS  
           

Mrs. Henson noted this is an annual bid for street signs and noted that Mr. Johnson submitted a 
recommendation to award to the low bidder – Vulcan Signs in Foley, Alabama.  Discussion continued on the bid.  

 

Motion by Mr. Davis to recommend to Council to award the 2014-M-Street Signs bid to 

Vulcan Signs for unit cost as bid.  Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

C.  Retirement Systems of Alabama one-time lump sum payment - $16,062  
 
Mr. Scott noted the option to approve a one-time lump sum for retirees has been presented in the past and the 
City has approved some and not approved some.  Mr. Scott noted he was willing to support the retirees.  Mr. 
Scott noted the payment to individual retirees would be $2/month for each year of service credited to the 
retiree’s account or $300, whichever is greater for retired members or their beneficiaries.   Discussion continued 
on how RSA would contact the retirees to explain the benefit option.  Mr. Scott noted this would be a FY2015 
Budget item. 
 

Motion by Mr. Davis to recommend to Council to adopt a Resolution to approve a one-
time lump sum payment for an estimated cost of $16,062 for eligible retirees and 
beneficiaries of deceased retirees to take effect in FY2015.  Seconded by Mr.  Lake..  
Motion carried. 

 
D.  2000-2020 Comprehensive Plan High Priority Implementation Strategy List/Survey 

 
Mrs. Adrienne Jones, Community Director, presented a survey regarding 26 High Priority Implementation 
Strategies as listed in the Daphne 2000-2020 Comprehensive Plan. The Finance Committee members and 
other attendees were given the opportunity to complete the survey and then discussed their responses. Mrs. 
Jones combined the survey responses submitted and found that the majority of the 26 items listed remain 
relevant today and there are ongoing efforts to implement the strategies itemized.   Of those present seven 
people submitted their surveys for consideration.   
  
Seven items were identified as having been accomplished and therefore can be removed from the 
Strategies list. These were as follows:  

1. Remodel and expand City Hall to reflect needed changes identified in the utilization analysis for a one-
stop permitting operation,  

2. Broaden Public Safety measures by establishing a precinct in the Jubilee Mall area. 
3. Provide pedestrian access to the Daphne Middle School through sidewalks along Whispering Pines 

Road. 
4. Upgrade areas with deficient water and fire protection service.  

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 24



Finance Minutes  5  

5. Expand funding mechanism for seed money for industrial expansion. 
6. Secure land for a new municipal complex, which would be more centrally located, or acquire additional 

land for expansion of existing municipal complex. 
7. Promote, enlarge and improve the Baldwin Rural Transportation System (BRATS) routes to better serve 

the population of Daphne. 
  
Several items were identified as major priorities which remain valid today.  The three items which 
received the most votes are as follows:  

1. As funds become available, Daphne should continue development of the multi-use, citywide sports 
complex that is capable of meeting recreational demand as well as providing an opportunity to host 
sports tournaments.(5 of 7 agreed) 

2. Provide sewer service to all parts of Daphne. (4 of 7 agreed) 
3. Develop and implement a comprehensive drainage study. (4 of 7 agreed) 

 
E. Surplus Sale Minutes 2014 

Mrs. Henson reviewed the year to date Surplus Sale collections - $87,572.75.  Mrs. Henson noted that the 
recent sale of the 2005 Caterpillar Backhoe brought in $32,925.  Mrs. Henson noted there are currently pending 
items/equipment to be sold so this is an ongoing process throughout the year. 
 

F. Pending Appropriation Request – to be discussed at the 6-11-14 Public Safety 
Committee Meeting – Replace PD Vehicle damaged during April Rain Storm - 
$41,008 

Discussion was made that the 2009 Crown Vic Vehicle #209 was totaled by insurance.  Captain Taylor noted 
that Chief Carpenter had planned to bring this item up at the Public Safety Meeting on 6-11-14.   
 

G. Sales Tax Holiday Resolution 
The Resolution was presented for the City to participate in the State  of Alabama 2014 :Back to School” Sales 
Tax Holiday for the period of Friday, August 1, 2014 (12:01p.m. and ending at midnight Sunday, August 3, 2014. 

 

Motion by Mr. Lake to recommend to Council to adopt a Resolution approving the City 
of Daphne’s participation in the State of Alabama 2014 “Back to School” Sales Tax 
Holiday”.  Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 
 
 

H. Fire Station #3 Renovations and Repairs related to Air Quality, Ms. Kathleen 
Huffman 

 
Ms. Huffman noted she was there to answer any questions concerning the repairs needed at FS#2.  Mr. Scott 
asked where the firemen are being housed during the renovations at FS#3.  Mayor Haygood noted they are 
being housed at FS#2.  Mayor Haygood reviewed the renovations that were needed.  Mrs. Conaway noted that 
once more information was provided it could be discussed further. 
 

I. Refinancing Bond Issue 
Mr. Davis asked Mr. Hinson what the status was on getting the information on Refinancing the Bond Issue.  Mr. 
Scott stated that basically the interest rate would be the same for all three companies so the deciding factor 
would be the fees.  Mr. Hinson discussed the information he had collected to date and stated basically the 
interest rate was the same.  Discussion continued on the City’s past experiences with these companies.  Mr. 
Hinson stated that his comparisons show it is the same market and it really comes down to who Council 
chooses.  Mr. Hinson noted that the lowest rate so far for fees is from Pfil Hunt, Harbor Financial Services, LLC.  
Mr. Scott discussed that the City is losing monies by waiting and asked if Mr. Hinson could get something 
together before the next Council Meeting.  Mr. Hinson stated he would plug in the last information he was 
waiting on and submit that information to all members of the Council. 
 

J. Renaissance District Board members needed 
Discussion was made on the process to select new members for the board.  Mr. Fry discussed letting the City 
Attorney make a recommendation on how to appoint new board members. 
 
 
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 25



Finance Minutes  6  

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Lodging Tax Fund – Recreation Loan 

 
Councilman LeJeune asked about the status of debt forgiveness for the recreation loan from the Lodging Tax 
Fund.  Discussion continued on the process of how payments are applied.  Mr. Hinson noted that entries are 
done monthly to record the debt payment allocation. Mrs. Henson noted that if the original loan was approved by 
ordinance then the debt forgiveness will need to be approved by ordinance.  Discussion continued on deferring 
any future debt payment allocations and Mr. Hinson researching all the details and what process needs to be 
done to forgive the remaining debt. 

 

Motion by Mr. Davis to recommend to Council to suspend any future debt payment 
allocations for the “Recreation Loan” from the Lodging Tax Fund.  Seconded by Mr. 
Lake.  Motion carried. 

 
***An Ordinance is also included in the packet to address the Debt Forgiveness 

 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 5:55 p.m.  
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 26



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 27



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 28



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 29



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 30



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 31



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 32



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 33



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 34



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 35



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 36



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 37



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 38



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 39



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 40



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 41



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 42



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 43



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 44



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 45



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 46



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 47



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 48



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 49



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 50



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 51



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 52



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 53



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 54



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 55



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 56



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 57



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 58



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 59



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 60



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 61



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 62



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 63



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 64



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 65



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 66



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 67



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 68



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 69



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 70



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 71



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 72



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 73



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 74



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 75



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 76



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 77



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 78



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 79



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 80



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 81



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 82



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 83



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 84



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 85



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 86



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 87



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 88



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 89



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 90



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 91



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 92



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 93



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 94



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 95



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 96



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 97



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 98



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 99



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 100



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 101



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 102



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 103



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 104



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, June 2, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary); Mike Hinson, Finance 

Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs 

Manager; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; Al Guarisco, Village 

Point Foundation; Adrienne Jones, Community Development Director; Kathy Murchison, 

BARC; Karen Ignatz, BARC; David McKelroy, Parks and Recreation Director; Selena Vaughn, 

Village Point Foundation; Councilman John Lake. 

Absent: Rick Whitehead, Richard Merchant, Building Official 

The meeting brought to order at 5:24 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Civic Center & Bayfront report (May): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her May report.  May 2014 revenue totaled 

$26,070.00, an increase from May 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at $141,328.50, 

above figures listed for FY2013.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for May 

stood at $17,927.50, and that the Civic Center has seen 15 events during May, for a total of 17 

days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for May totaling 

$9,202.00, above May 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $50,874.00, an 

increase from 2013 numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for May 

stood at $12,676.00, and that Bayfront Pavilion has seen 14 events during May, for a total of 

14 days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events scheduled at the Civic 

Center which are listed on her report herein.   

 

In addition, she updated the Committee on the following: 

 A recent staff resignation by Jason Agey.  She is seeking to fill the position, and 

believes the process will take approximately three to four weeks. 

 Currently working through damages from groups; damage deposits will assist in 

covering the cost of these repairs. 

 The permanent HVAC chiller for the Civic Center will be shipped June 23rd, though 

this date is still tentative. 

 Spring cleaning efforts are still underway, delayed by weather and group activity. 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 105



 She is still collecting economic impact information from the Master Gardener’s 

convention. 

 

Chairman Davis removed consideration of the Algae Systems Information Kiosk 

and Insurance Oversight from the agenda, and added consideration of the Tower 

Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless. 

 

2. Proposed Partnership with BARC: Kathy Murchison and Karen Ignatz 

 

Ms. Murchison referenced information provided in the packet to educate the Committee on 

the items they would like to accomplish with the partnership, including the segregation of 

kennels for different pet populations. 

 

Chairman Davis spoke briefly about his experience with visiting the Haven animal shelter in 

Fairhope and BARC’s facility in Mobile.  He voiced the need to allow time for the Council to 

discuss the possibility of a partnership and study the information given by BARC. 

3. Tower Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless: Jay Ross 

 

Mr. Ross gave a short summary of the issue introduced at last month’s meeting.  He 

addressed questions previously asked by the committee members thusly: 

- Both Mr. Ross and the Mayor studied the matter and decided that the current offered 

price on the lease was the best price that could be obtained without the possibility of 

Verizon going elsewhere. 

- Mr. Ross clarified that addition companies co-locating on the premises with Verizon 

would garner $250.00 extra income per month; an additional two to three companies 

were anticipated.  Verizon will inform the City in advance if this will occur. 

- Verizon will need to go before the Planning Commission for approval to build their 

tower, which can be no higher than allowed by the standing ordinance. 

 

Motion by Mr. Rudicell to favorably recommend the lease for approval from the Council.  

Seconded by Mr. Fry.  Motion carried unanimously.  

4. Fire Station #3: Richard Johnson  

 

Richard Johnson brought information to the Committee to update them on the condition of 

Fire Station #3 and the status of the upgrades scheduled for the station.  Information 

included current issues with the station, which include air quality/environmental as well as 

an awkward build for living quarters.  Repairs would gut, salvage, and rebuild the station so 

that it was properly insulated and sealed with quality HVAC.  Also included the repairs are 

options for rebuilding the façade of the structure.  Mr. Johnson invited input concerning the 

repairs and façade design. 

 

5. Review of the Community Facilities and Services Element of the Daphne 

Comprehensive Plan: Adrienne Jones 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 106



Ms. Jones encouraged everyone (both staff and Council members) to participate by 

providing information and suggestions for improvements to the comprehensive plan.  She 

asked that members of the Buildings and Property Committee fill out and return the 

participant survey contained in the packet responding specifically to issues regarding 

Community Facilities and Services.  She then passed out the stakeholder meeting schedule 

contained herein. 

 

Chairman Davis shared the information he had to provide regarding the Comprehensive 

Plan, and encouraged committee members to get information to Adrienne as soon as 

possible. 

6. Building inspection monthly reports (May):  Ashley Campbell 

 

Ashley Campbell reviewed the building report information submitted to the committee, 

pointing out that 136 permits were filed during May, with 12 new residential starts. Total job 

cost was $3,498,515.55 with permit fees totaling $29,075.50.   

 

Ms. Campbell additionally mentioned that she was working with a few homeowners to 

handle FEMA buyouts after the recent flooding. 

 

7. Bayfront Property 

 

Mr. Johnson and Ms. Campbell spoke regarding the Resolution in support of the D’Olive Bay 

Forever Wild Nomination.  They explained that this resolution was the next step in being a 

finalist for selection by the Forever Wild project.  If this project is selected, Forever Wild will pay 

all expenses for the property acquisition; the City will simply have to provide access to the 

property.  Afterwards, the City would be able to submit for grant funding to place grant, trails, or 

other improvements. 

 

8. Approval of Minutes: May 5, 2014 

 

Mr. Rudicell requested that the minutes be amended to show that he was present. 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the May 5, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:29, motion by 

Mr. Rudicell and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 107



CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE Page 1 
 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, June 11, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                    

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 There being a quorum present Councilman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:50 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Pat Rudicell.   

 

ABSENT:   Ron Scott. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Kevin Boucher, Attorney; Mike 

Hinson, Finance Director; Councilman Joe Davis. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / May 14, 2014 

There were no corrections to the May 14, 2014 minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

 

1. Proposed Ordinance Amending Ordinance 2008-19 / Protecting Air Quality in the  

             City of Daphne 

a.)  Amendment:  Banning E-Cigarettes in City Facilities 

 

Kevin said the ordinance defines e-cigarettes, and that they would be banned at all facilities 

which would include parks. 

 

The committee discussed the ordinance and agreed that they wanted the ban to be just indoors 

and not outdoors, and asked Kevin to amend the ordinance, and he will check to see if they have 

been banned in Federal buildings 

 

The ordinance will come back to the July meeting for further review. 

 

 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 108



CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE Page 2 
 

2.  Amending Ordinances 2006-47 & 2007-10 / Sewer Connection Requirements  

a.)  Amendment:  Appeal Process 

     
The committee considered who should hear the appeals council or BZA. 

 

Kevin said for the BZA to hear appeals it would depend on the incorporation articles. 

 

The City Clerk will research the subject to find the incorporation articles. 

 

The subject will come back to the committee in July. 

 

 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
No other business to discuss. 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be July9, 2014 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:35 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 109



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on May 19, 2014 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 Meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 Committee Members Present: Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron 

Scott, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Dane Haygood, Mayor; Richard D. Johnson-Public Works 

Director, Dorothy Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee, and Michele T. Hanson, PWC 

secretary. 

 Others Present: Mike Hinson & Christine Ciancetta-Finance , Randy Davis-Volkert, Scott 

Hutchinson-HMR, John Peterson-Hatch Mott, Councilman Joe Davis, Councilman Pat Rudicell, Joy 

Turner – 506 Lake Shore Drive. 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report - The report for April 2014 was reviewed.  

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – The report for April 2014 was reviewed.  

Richard reported that the non-routine vehicle maintenance for Police was the equipping of the 

Tahoe’s. 

C. Correspondence – No Correspondence. 

D. Public Participation – Joy Turner (506 Lake Shore Drive) 

Open Public Participation at 5:08 p.m. 
Ms. Turner addressed the committee regarding the water draining through her yard from the 

drainage ditch behind her property.  The biggest problem is the debris in the ditch that clogs 

up the drain and causes overflow and flooding.  She showed pictures to the committee.  She 

stated that she called in about the clogged drain the 1st of April and nothing was done.  She 

called again the next week and then something was done.  She has lived there for 47 years and 

knows how this area is flooded.  In 1998, she sued the city and won about this. But after the 1st 

rain in April, she and her yard man cleaned it up, but after the 2nd rain in April before the big 

rain, she left it for Public Works to look at. She asked the Public Works Director to come and 

see what could be done about it. She stated that he didn’t have the authority to do anything, 

she called her council person and they said they didn’t have the authority either. She said its 

not as bad as it was in 98 when she sued the city and she doesn’t want to do that now, she just 

wants it fixed. 

Richard stated in reference to the comment that there was nothing he could do, we do have a 

standing work order that once a week someone will inspect and clean out the ditch. We have a 

problem with the residents on Parma and Pineridge throwing their stuff over their fence into 

the flume.  We will be sending out a letter to all of the residents reminding them of what our 

ordinance says.  He was at Ms. Turners home on that Monday and did witness some erosion 

and straw washed out of the beds.  Both properties on either side of her drains to her yard. He 

told Ms. Turner that he does not have the authority to send Public Works crews, material or 

equipment on to private property and replace landscaping and things of that nature. 

Ron Scott asked if we could include in the letter that they are causing problems for other 

residents downstream.  Richard said yes. The plans are to put a higher curbing around the 

throat of the drainage box to make the water go as high as possible into that drain and to keep 

watch on the ditch to keep it clear of debris. Ms. Turner wants her yard to be fixed because of 

the rain overflow. She said it would probably take a load of dirt, 2 pallets of grass and 10 bales 

of straw.  Ron Scott told her that we have drainage issues all over the city – yards, houses, 

sheds, etc.  He suggested that she get an estimate and submit that to Finance for a 

recommendation to the Council.  John Lake stated that we would have to consult with the 

attorneys to see if this can be done, whether ethics or precedent would be involved. Mayor 

stated that his office will contact her and confirm the plan of action. 

 June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 110



III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – The minutes from the April 21, 2014 meeting were reviewed and approved. 

Motion by Tommie Conaway, Seconded by John Lake to approve the minutes with 

corrections.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Report – Mosquito spraying will start May 1st and will have report next month. 

C. Street Sweeper Reports – GEO Tracker has been repaired and will have report next month. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 2014 Recreational Trails Program – Motion to Council to apply for additional 

boardwalk trails at Village Point Park - $100,000 Maximum Grant with 80/20 cost share. 

Richard stated we have participated with this program in the past. The pre-application has to 

be submitted on June 9th. This would make a new boardwalk that would lead from Village 

Point Park to Bayfront Park. There has been a desire to have a trail that goes to the east to 

have viewing area on the bluff line.  This is not applicable to sidewalks, just for recreational 

trails.  This is usually an every other year grant, if we are awarded the grant. The available 

funds for this grant in Alabama is 1.6 million.  Since we were awarded one 2 years ago, we 

may not get this one, but it’s good to keep our name in contention. 

Motion by Ron Scott, Seconded by John Lake to favorably recommend to the council to 

move forward with the application for the ADECA Recreational Trail Grant. 

B. Mast Arm Poles & Signal Upgrades at Johnson Road and US Highway 98 

City/ALDOT/Colonnade Developers – Motion to Finance Committee 

ALDOT will be reconfiguring the intersection of 98 & Johnson Road by shifting the left turn 

lanes with payment widening and striping as well as the developer of the Colonnade will be 

adding right hand turn lane on Johnson Road turning north on 98.  We want to systematically 

upgrade our signals throughout the city, the State has proposed to replace the signal here with 

the arm mast poles at a price tag of $150,000 with the city sharing half of that cost. Hopefully 

the developer will help, if not paying all of our half.  We would like a recommendation to the 

June Finance Committee to move forward with this. 

Motion by Tommie Conaway, Seconded by John Lake to favorably recommend to the 

Finance Committee to appropriate our cost ($75,000) for the mast pole and signal upgrade. 

 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
A. Lake Forest Boulevards, Phase IV – ATRIP 02-05-35 – Review of Resolution and Ordinance 

This resolution is on the council agenda for tonight, this is for the Lake Forest Phase IV, 

which is an ATRIP project, which is the remaining part of Ridgewood Drive, which includes 

Windsor will let at ALDOT on May 30th.  We will be given 30th days to pay our portion up 

front. No action needs to be taken from this committee, just a review of what’s to come. 

B. 04-29-2014 Rain Event Update – FEMA/NRC – Project(s) Status 

Richard stated that he will meet with FEMA tomorrow and start initiating project work sheets.  

A list is included in the packet that will need funding.  The top 9 are moving forward tonight, 

the ones in yellow will be done in-house.  With FEMA we are guaranteed 75% reimbursement  

of the approved permanent work.  If the council suspends the rules tonight, the engineers can 

go ahead and start a scope of work and cost.  This ordinance is for 3 through 9 on the list.  

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report  -  The report for April 2014 was reviewed.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) – The report for April 2014 was 

reviewed. Richard commented that we have had another good month, tonnage was up over last 

year. We’re at 41.64 % of goal. 

Public Works Day was fairly good, it did rain, but we had quite a few kids stop by before the 

rain came. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report  -  The report for April 2014 was reviewed.  April was a 

good month, we were slow on new customers, however May will be much larger. 

 

 June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 111



VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from April 14, 2014 meeting were reviewed.  There were no questions or comments. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from May 7, 2014 meeting were reviewed.  Dorothy commented that Patriot’s Point 

is looks great with the new wall and flowers.  Banners are out and look good, starting to look 

patriotic. Arbor Day plans will be on our agenda for next month, looking for ideas to promote 

this event.  Would like to use all the city lattice signs for this event. Welcomed 2 new 

members to the committee, one from District 4 and one from District 5.  Always looking for 

new volunteers/members.  After next month’s Beautification meeting, John Lake has invited 

the committee to tour his yard. Ron Scott stated that the Keep America Beautiful project is on 

the agenda for council approval tonight. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from the April 28, 2014 meeting were reviewed. John Lake stated that he was once 

on this committee, he would like to see some addressing of storm water run-off. He suggested 

people putting rain gardens in their yards.  Even small things helps.  Would like to see the 

committee create some type of brochures to educate the public.  Richard stated that by-laws 

need to be adopted and a council person appointed to the committee, so how this has slipped 

through the cracks and needs to be addressed.  Next meeting will be in June, due to the 

Memorial Day holiday in May. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR – Scott Hutchinson reported that Ridgewood should be done by the end of the month.  

Lake Forest Phase IV will let on May 30th. 

B. Hatch Mott MacDonald –  Main Street project is ALDOTs hands waiting on letting. This will 

take place in August and we will start in September. 

C. Jade Consulting – No Report. 

 

The 13/64 letting is set for August. All ROW has been acquired except for the corner at the Vet’s 

property.  The contractor will do the best they can do make sure the traffic will run smoothly, but with 

all major road construction there will be some days that the intersection will be partially shut down or 

redirected.  

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting is June 16, 2014. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned @ 6:16 p.m. 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 112



Daphne Beautification Committee Minutes 

May 7, 2014 

 

Attending: Selena Vaughn, Dana Sawyer, Michelle Hanson, Walter Gray, Pat Rudicell, Margie Bellue, 

Tomasina Werner, Rebecca Trosclair, Elaine Maximee, Christine Ciancetta, Dwayne Coley, Denise 

Penry, and Dorothy Morrison 

 

A-Gator Alley- the damage to the bridges is being assessed and repairs will begin as soon as possi-

ble….the rest of the project is on track……. 

 

B-Patriot’s Point ……was miraculously finished as the Master Gardner’s arrived….. still awaiting the 

logo for the front …….A motion was passed to have the same logo on the back side/ facing the parking 

lot with the words Patriot’s Point printed as well…….   

 

C-Balance $8,872.32 with $3,000 still being held for the Keep Daphne Beautiful expenses…..we were 

reminded that we need to spend our money by Sept or loose it. We voted to purchase several Christmas 

decoration for the 2015 season… totaling $750 and for the Court Yard clean up totaling $500. 

 

D-Top Ten List 

 We were told by Dwayne that Wal-Mart would be taking care of the vines in the trees on Hwy 98 

in front of their store ….. 

 The trees on the I-10 curve from Hwy 98 are a mess. Dwayne said the Mayor said take them 

out……..Can we get something done 

 Dirt from snow stores in Jan still on bridges on Hwy 98/Gator Alley Bridge- 3 months 

 Weeds/grass growing on the 98/I10 underpass again…… 

 I-10/181 exit needs attention Major entrance to town is unattractive- needs edging, pick up trash, 

etc. 

 Master Plan for Malfunction Junction 

 Daphne Ave/64 improvement to city land in front of the shopping center 

 Island on 64 at 98 waiting for the Mayor  

 Redesign entrances 

 Randall Ave corner improvement 

 

E-In Richard’s absence, Denise showed picture of the damage many areas suffered……we are all 

grateful it was no worse …..Public Works Day is Wed, the 14th  

 

F-Marjorie will order light bulbs when they are available….. then we will have an early Christmas 

Lighting Party[ Install new bulbs in the decorations] 

 

G-The Tennis court need more work and the Crape Myrtles will be ordered….the ones we had have 

been planted in other places……..we do have a list that was created several years ago with location that 

were waiting for Crape Myrtles…… 

 

H-Hwy 181 plantings no progress…… 

 

I-DRA is having the planter boxes replanted for the summer with red, white and blue plants…….The 

boxes are very popular and another Boy Scout is interested in recreating the project….. 

 

J-Bird House Brochure is moving along with now capable creator, paper purchased, drawing in the 

works……… 

 

District 1 
 

Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
Walter Gray 
 
District 4 
 

Selena Vaughn 
Dana Sawyer 
 
District 5 
 

David Dueitt 
Rebecca Trosclair 
 
District 6 
 

Elaine Maxime 
Hollie LeJeuune 
 
 
City Liaisons 
 

Marjorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
Michele Hanson 
Christine Ciancetta 
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 113



K-American Flag Display…we should have 400 this summer…....we have been asked to have some flags on the 

east side of Hwy 98…….Hwy 64, the Traffic Circle, Park Road, Pollard Rd, requests have come for citizens for 

decoration on both sides of town … 

perhaps on 64 to 181 to start…. 

 

There was much regret expressed that Daphne was not doing a Memorial Day Service…The Beautification 

Committee will try to encourage the Mayor  and Council to have a Memorial Service at Patriot’s Point in 

2015…..Planned far in advance.    

 

L-Endowment Fund – no action has been taken waiting for the Attorney……… 

 

M-Mayor’s comments- The Mayor was not able to attend………. 

 

N- Next month time will be spent making plans for Arbor Day in Feb including time changes, selection for dif-

ferent trees, number of trees, where to plant the trees, publicity i.e. use of the message boards…..only 3 can be 

used we need to get that ordnance changed temporarily 

 

Councilman Rudicell suggestion that the Beautification Committee get information about plans for beautifying 

the parks system, there is a lot of money to be spend and we would like to create some of the plans that will take 

us forward ………We have professional landscaper, Master Gardner’s, and volunteer that have many years ex-

perience in designing beautiful areas for the City…….. 

 

Explanation-Also included in the packets were picture that showed the need for weed removal at Centennial 

Park and the need for planting around the quadrant of the Daphne Statue Fountain where the plaque was 

placed…. 

 

Thank you for your time and commitment to the Daphne Beautification Committee……. 

 

D………… 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 114



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 115



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 116



Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 28, 2014 - 4:00 PM 

City of Daphne - Environmental Advisory Committee 

Daphne City Hall – Executive Boardroom 

 

1 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bret Webb, Carl Pinyerd, Art Hosey, Chester McConnell, John Peterson, Richard 

Johnson, Ashley Campbell and Michele T. Hanson. 

Guest: Mike Shelton 

 

CALL TO ORDER  
Bret Webb called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Motion by Chester McConnell, seconded by John Peterson to approve the March 24, 2014 minutes with 

corrections. Motion carried. Minutes were adopted.  

 

1) Presentation by Mike Shelton, Weeks Bay Coastal Training Program Coordinator. 

Mr. Shelton presented the committee with information regarding the Coastal Community Resilience Index. He 

has also made this presentation to the City Council.  Several community leaders, representing the city, met to 

discuss different scenarios of storms and how to prepare Daphne for this event.  The committee discussed at 

length the six elements of the tool; which are Critical Infrastructure & facilities, Transportation Issues, 

Community Plan & Agreements, Mitigation Measures, Business Plans and Social Systems.  The summary is 

attached for your review.  The results are an ongoing research.  The City of Daphne turned in a medium/high 

rating, getting a more formalize agreement with mutual aid systems and ecumenical groups. Become more 

involved with the local emergency planning committee through EMA, get a current response plan from 

Thomas Hospital, coordinate training for employees, directors, council & committee members, create 

incentives for residents to improve resilience , explore multi-lingual education opportunities. 

 

2) EAC By-laws 

Richard stated that the by-laws were not established or adopted. He recommends that we create some by-laws 

and will research the organizational meeting minutes and try to find what was discussed.  We do know that the 

meeting date was established as the 4
th
 Monday of the month.  He recommends that we do adopt a set of by-

laws and make them as simple as possible.  He will ask the city clerk to research other committee’s by-laws as 

a starting point.  Bret will send all the information he has. 

 

UPDATE ON PROJECTS: 

 

1. D’Olive Watershed 

Mobile Bay Estuary has signed contracts with NFWF and that has initiated the 6.7 million dollar grant and 

NEP has hired a consultant to work with them to design the projects.  The first set of projects will be in 

Spanish Fort & Daphne which includes Joes Branch.  Thompson Engineering will be doing this phase and 

has primary field work and are in the early stages of design. This is a true habitat & wetland restoration. 

 

2. Alligator Alley   

We did get released from ALDOT to start the property acquisition. We are having the appraisal done and 

hopefully that will be back the first part of May. We know we have a willing seller if the price is right. We 

are hopeful that we can advertise for bid in June and begin work in August.  

 

3. Forever Wild 

We have a Forever Wild nomination that was submitted by Village Point for 100 acres on D’Olive Bay for 

the purchase and preservation. Village Point is requesting a resolution of support from the City Council. We 

are in the process of writing that resolution to be sent to Building and Property Committee first and then to 

the Council.  In June, there is a meeting in Guntersville to discuss the projects to award the funds to, we are 

not in the top 3, but are still on the short list.  Selena Vaughn will be attending that meeting and take the 

resolution with her and hopefully move us up the list.   

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 117



Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 28, 2014 - 4:00 PM 

City of Daphne - Environmental Advisory Committee 

Daphne City Hall – Executive Boardroom 

 

2 
 

4. Future LID Workshop 

There is a big emphasis on Low Impact Development and the NEP wants to see city’s with impaired 

watersheds to not just promote LID, but require it.  We want to educate local consultants regarding this, so 

once the Gator Alley project is started, Dr. Brantley wants to have a one day workshop to educate.  We will 

have more training in the fall as well. 

 

Auburn has a workshop on Bio-Retention and the use of it in the LID Handbook. I will send to Michele to 

email to everyone. 

 

Our annual ADEM audit was done and we are compliant.  We did not have our Construction Best 

Management Ordinance in place at the time of the audit however it has since been completed and adopted. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

No new business was discussed.  There was discussion on recruiting new members for the committee.  Richard 

stated that all we need is a resume and that they are a Daphne resident.  Richard thanked those who attended the 

Volunteer Breakfast for coming out. 

 

Next Meeting: There will be no meeting in May due to the Memorial Day Holiday. 

 

ADJOURN:  Motion by Carl Pinyerd, Seconded by John Peterson to adjourn.  Meeting adjourned at 4:58 

pm. 

 

 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 118



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 119



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 120



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 121



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 122



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 123



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 124



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 125



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 126



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 127



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 128



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 129



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 130



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

JUNE 5, 2014 - 6:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present W. Robison, B. Mayhand, F. Lamb, P. Durant, 
W. Scully, T. Warner 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Approved 

  

 May 1, 2014   

  

4. OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS - Approved 

  

Appeal #2014-07 Brent Harwood 

 
A request for a Variance to the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance has been filed with the City of 

Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. The request, if granted, 

proposes to change the side setback to eight point five 

feet, in lieu of the required twenty five feet for an 

alteration to an existing nonconforming structure as 

described in Article 9-2 of the Land Use & Development 

Ordinance. The property is 1501 U.S. Highway 98, which is 

zoned B-2, General Business. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT – 6:23 p.m. 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 131



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
May 14, 2014 

 
 

Members Present: Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham, David Dueitt, Frank Pierce, Kit Smith and 
Lawrence Yelding 
 
Members Absent: Lisa O’Hara 
 
Advisory Staff: Councilman Robin LeJeune, Glenn Vickery, Christine Ciancetta and David 
McKelroy 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:30pm. 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Rick Cleveland and seconded by Kit Smith to approve the April 9, 2014 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs.  Special upcoming programs: Sunday Sunset 
Series, Art in the Park and Wet-n-Wild Wednesday. 
 
Old / New Business 
 
 Councilman LeJeune provided information to the board from the recent Daphne City 
 Council work session regarding facility debt forgiveness and new facility needs. 
 
 The Board discussed at length the needs of recreational facilities for the city.  Proposal 
 for new facilities needed in Daphne are attached. 
 
Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05pm. 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 132



CITY OF DAPHNE RECREATION BOARD 
NEW FACILITIES PROPOSAL 

 
 
Youth Softball and Baseball Fields    Recommendation of ten (10) fields, two five (5) 
field complexes at new Park Drive location, complete with lights and concession / restroom 
building.  Girls’ softball fields are needed because Daphne does not have any fields designated 
solely for girls’ softball, they share the Trione Sports Complex with adult softball and Dixie Boys 
Baseball.  It is recommended that field dimensions be a minimum of 200 feet, maximum of 225 
feet. 
 
New baseball fields are needed to replace the fields at Lott Park.  Lott Park is a beautiful facility, 
however is unsafe.  Inadequate parking, lighting and field proximity are a safety concern at this 
thirty nine year old facility.  It is recommended that field dimensions be 225 feet on three (3) 
fields and 300 feet on two (2) fields.  Two larger fields will allow U14 baseball to be played at 
this location, keeping all youth baseball together. 
 
Ten fields located at the same location would further enhance the city’s ability to host more 
and larger tournaments and increase the economic impact to the city. 
 
Softball and baseball at the new sports complex on Park Drive creates a stand alone facility.  
This will allow for future expansion of baseball and softball in the same location.  It will also 
allow the entrance to be used for amenities that will compliment and enhance the usefulness of 
the facility (playground, skate park, basketball courts, beach volleyball courts, etc.).  The 
opening of the Park Drive facility will also provide an opportunity to develop other recreational 
activities within the park not associated with baseball or softball, such as walking/jogging trails, 
biking trails, disc golf and other low impact activities. 
 
 
Tennis Courts   Recommendation of eight (8) lighted courts minimum at Lott 
Park.  Eight courts are believed to be the best number to accommodate the needs of the 
community.  This would allow courts for recreational play, league play, tournaments, high 
school matches and lessons/learning programs.  Courts at Lott Park could be built without 
space limitations and allow for future expansion. 
 
 
Recreation Center  Recommendation for a Recreation Center at Lott Park.  A facility 
that includes basketball court, walking track, fitness center, game room, activities rooms, 
swimming pool and splash pad.  A facility of this type would be a tremendous asset to the city, 
providing a wide variety of activity and recreational opportunities for variety of ages.  This 
facility would allow for the creation of youth and adult basketball and volleyball programs 
which we do not currently offer.   Combined with tennis courts at this location, the down town 
area becomes a center for year round activity instead of seasonal. 
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 133



Multi-purpose Fields at Trione with Renovations  With increased participation in 
soccer, lacrosse and football, additional field space will soon be needed to accommodate these 
activities.  Four additional fields to the south at Trione are recommended.  Along with these 
fields, a renovation to all of Trione is recommended.  Landscaping to the park for a more 
pleasing appearance, a playground and walking / exercise trail would enhance the overall park 
experience at Trione.  These renovations would make Trione useable to everyone, just not 
those using the athletic fields.  Renovations to the field fencing, restrooms and concession area 
at softball should also be considered at this twenty year old facility. 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 134



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 135



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 136



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 137



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 138



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 139



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 140



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 141



 

CIT OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION 2014 - 30 

 

RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF  

THE D’OLIVE BAY FOREVER WILD NOMINATION 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mobile and D’Olive Bays are considered exceptional for their historic, 

environmental and economic importance; and   

 

 WHEREAS, several parcels along Mobile and D’Olive Bays in Daphne that adjoin the 

City’s existing Gator Alley Park and are owned by Friday Construction LLC., PPIN #067154 (15 

acres), PPIN #066484 (72 acres), and PPIN # 066750 (11 acres), have been nominated for 

acquisition and preservation by the Forever Wild Land Trust Program; and  

 

WHEREAS, these parcels consist of upland, wetland, and marsh areas which provide 

habitat for diverse native species and also aid in the protection of water quality; and 

 

WHEREAS, the acquisition and preservation of Mobile Bay coastal access is important 

to the City of Daphne, and 

 

 WHEREAS the City would like to expand the Gator Alley Park to include access to 

these parcels and to add additional public access to Mobile Bay. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE endorses the D ’Olive Bay Forever Wild Nomination; and  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE that the City of Daphne willingly, and in full support, agrees to assist in providing 

public access to the Forever Wild Parcels by expanding the Gator Alley Park to include the 

parcels.  The City will seek funding to implement boardwalks through the parcels and once 

installed will provide maintenance and security of the improvements. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA this ______ day of ____________, 2014. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 142



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-31 
 

 2014-L-PD RADIO EQUIPMENT:  GPS TRACKING SYSTEM & SOFTWARE 
 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PD RADIO 
EQUIPMENT:  GPS TRACKING SYSTEM & SOFTWARE will exceed this 
amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the PD RADIO EQUIPMENT:  GPS 
TRACKING SYSTEM & SOFTWARE and determined that the bid as presented 
is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Monies are available for the purchase of the PD RADIO 
EQUIPMENT:  GPS TRACKING SYSTEM & SOFTWARE; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PD RADIO EQUIPMENT:  GPS 
TRACKING SYSTEM & SOFTWARE be awarded to Hurricane Electronics, Inc.; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Hurricane Electronics, Inc in the amount of $56,599.91 as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-L-PD RADIO EQUIPMENT:  GPS TRACKING 
SYSTEM & SOFTWARE. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS                     day of                                       , 2014. 
 

     
                                                                                                                                                                                        

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
        
 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 143



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-32 

2014-M-STREET SIGNS 
 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the STREET 
SIGNS will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the STREET SIGNS and determined 
that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the STREET SIGNS be awarded to 
Vulcan Signs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Vulcan Signs for unit cost as bid herein and made a part hereof for BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-M-STREET SIGNS. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS              day of                               , 2014 
 
                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                                                          

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:   

 
___________________________              
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

        
 
 
 
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 144



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 145



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 146



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 147



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 148



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 149



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 150



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 151



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 152



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 153



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-33          
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY OF DAPHNE’S 
PARTICIPATION IN THE STATE OF ALABAMA  

2014 “BACK TO SCHOOL” SALES TAX HOLIDAY 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as 

follows: 
 
  Section 1. Section 4 of Alabama Act No. 2006-574 grants municipal 

governments authority to provide for the exemption of certain covered items from the 
payment of municipal sales tax during a period commencing at 12:01 a.m. on the first 
Friday in August of each year and ending at twelve midnight the following Sunday under 
the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided for the state sales tax holiday. 

 
  Section 2. The City of Daphne grants approval for the exemption of 

certain covered items from the payment of municipal sales tax for the period 
commencing at 12:01 a.m. Friday, August 1, 2014 and ending at twelve midnight 
Sunday, August 3, 2014 under the same terms, conditions and definitions as provided 
for by Act No. 2006-574 and Alabama Department of Revenue Rule 810-6-3-.65. 

 
  Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this the __________ day of __________, 2014. 
 
 
 

                             
                                          _____________________________ 
                           Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 154



 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-34 
 

Retiree Cost of Living: One-Time Lump Sum Payment 
Act 2014-429 

 
(Local Unit Retirees and Beneficiaries of Deceased Retirees) 

 
 

WHEREAS, Act 2014-429 as adopted by the Alabama Legislature grants a cost-
of-living increase to certain eligible retirees and beneficiaries of the Employees’ 
Retirement System whose effective date of retirement for the purpose of receiving 
benefits is prior to October 1, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, such cost-of-living increase is equal to $2.00 per month for each year 
of service credited to the retiree’s account or $300, whichever is greater 
(estimated cost - $16,062). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne 
that the City of Daphne: 
 

1) Elects to come under the provisions of Section 2 of Act 2014-429 of the 
Regular Session of the 2014 Legislature and 

 
2) Agrees to provide all funds necessary to the Employees’ Retirement 

System to cover the cost of the one-time lump sum payment as provided 
for by said Act for those eligible employees retired from the City of 
Daphne prior to October 1, 2013 with the aforementioned increase being 
paid on or about August 31, 2014. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this _______ day of ________________, 2014. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Dane Haygood,  Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 155



ORDINANCE 2014-25 
 

Project: ACOA61155-ATRP(001) ATRIP 02-05-35 - Resurfacing Windsor & 
Ridgewood Drive - 1.25 Miles (Lake Forest Phase IV) 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council 
has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has entered into an agreement with ALDOT for an ATRIP grant for 
the resurfacing of Windsor & Ridgewood Drives from North Main Street to Bayview 
Drive with an 80/20 cost share ratio. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $425,275 from the General Fund are appropriated 
to be transferred to Capital Reserve and made a part of the Fiscal 
Year 2014 budget for the City’s 20% match for the project herein described. 
 

Project Cost Total Cost 
80% 

Reimbursement 
20% Cost to the 

City 
Construction $1,849,018.51 $1,479,214.81 $369,803.70 
Construction Engineering & 
Inspection & Material Testing $   277,352.78 $   221,882.22 $  55,470.56 

Totals: $2,126,371.29 $1,701,097.03 $425,274.26 

 
FURTHERMORE, the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents 
required in order for the City of Daphne to participate in such project. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ____ day of ________________, 2014. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 156



June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 157



ORDINANCE 2014-26 
 

An Ordinance Appropriating Funds for Survey, Engineering, Design and Letting – City-
Wide Infrastructure Projects: North Main Street Paved Concrete Ditch Repairs 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, many streets and their drainage systems located 
within the City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require repairs in order to prevent 
further damage to the City's infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne will be making application with the NRCS (Natural Resources 
Conservation Service) and FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency) for partial and/or 
full reimbursement of expenses incurred for such public infrastructure repairs as described 
below; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to complete engineering design in a timely manner and solicit 
bids/quotes from qualified contractors at the same time reimbursable funding is being 
determined by the NRCS and FEMA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these projects key to the recovery efforts 
associated with this rain event and the repair of these public infrastructures is necessary to 
preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation from Capital Reserve 
Fund in the amount of $14,250.00 for design and letting to the below described qualified 
engineers and repair project (attached as exhibit “A”): 

 
Project     Engineer Survey, Design & Letting 
 

a. 04-2014-RE23 – N Main Concrete Ditch    Volkert  $14,250.00 
     
    Total Survey, Design & Letting Cost:  $14,250.00  

  
3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with the NRCS and FEMA for the 

reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the 
described projects. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this ____ day 
of __________, 2014. 
 
 
             

      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 158



ORDINANCE 2014-27 
 

Debt Forgiveness: Recreation Capital Purchases Loan – Appropriation 
 

(Sports Complex Entrance Road / Lighting / Restrooms (2) / Concession / Bleachers (4) / Fence Replacement)  

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on 
September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of 
the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2009-55 set forth a debt repayment plan for ground related recreation 
capital items purchased from an allocation of Lodging Tax due to lodging tax funding source for 
such capital recreational items had not accumulated to the point of providing funding for such 
improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2009-55 was repealed in its entirety in Ordinance 2014-06; and 
 
WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed from the General Fund  to be transferred to the Lodging 
Tax Fund  to fund the remaining debt balance  of $643,644 (Ord#2010-09, 2011-04, 2011-14, 2012-44):  
 

Such funds shall be “loaned” to the recreation reserve and repaid to the bay front reserve from such 

funds as are allocated to recreation by Ordinance 2009-55 as such lodging tax collections are 

recognized.  No lodging tax funds will be available for other recreational purposes until such time as 

all sums “borrowed” are repaid in full. 

; and 
 
WHEREAS, future allocations for ground recreational capital purchases will now be available for 
future purchases of capital items; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: 

 
1) The Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include a General Fund appropriation to be 
transferred to Lodging Tax  to fund the debt balance of $643,644 for the ground related recreation 
capital purchases.  
2) Future collections of Lodging tax proceeds allocated for such recreational grounds capital items 
will be available for future recreational capital purchases. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ____ day of ________________, 2014. 
 

________________________________ 
Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

June 16, 2014 Council Meeting 159


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes
	Backup to Council Minutes - LON JOHNSTON'S RESIGNATION LETTER
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Backup to Work Session Minutes
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance 6-16-14
	Buildings & Property Mintues
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Public Works Minutes - 05-19-2014
	Beautification Minutes 5-7-2014
	Museum Minutes April 14
	Environmental Advisory Committee Minutes 04-28-2014
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Minutes - May 2
	BZA Staff Report
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES--5-14-14
	FACILITY PROPOSALS - REC BOARD ATTACHEMENT MAY 14 2014
	Report of Officers
	Special Events Permit - DAC
	Parade Permit - Suicide Preventions Out of Darkness
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2014-30 - RES - Forever Wild
	2014-31 - RES - PD RADIO EQUIP GPS TRACKING SYS  SOFTWARE
	2014-32 -  RES - Street Signs
	Backup to 2014-32 - RES
	2014-33 - RES - Sales Tax Holiday-2014
	2014-34 - RES - Retiree Cost of Living 2014-2015
	2014-25 - ORD - ATRIP 02-05-35 ALDOT Ord-Appropriation-Windsor-Ridgewood
	Backup to 2014-25 - ORD
	2014-26 - ORD - Infrastr Proj-MAIN ST DITCH-April Rains-FEMA
	2014-27 - ORD - Lodging Tax- Debt Forgiveness-Sports Complex Lighting-BR-Bleachers Loan



